2006

James Lewis Kimball v. Merae Kimball : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

I. DIVORCE:

This court has jurisdiction pursuant to UTAH CODE ANN. §78A-4-103 (recodified, previously §78-2a-3(2)(e) (Supp. 2001)). The Honorable Joseph C. Fratto of the Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, State of Utah, presided over the trial in this matter and entered an Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law on September 20, 2005, and made a final order by his Minute Entry entered on February 21, 2006.

II. FIDELITY:

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to UTAH CODE ANN. §78A-4-103 (recodified, previously §78-2a-3(2)(j)) and the Order of the Supreme Court of the State of Utah, entered October 23, 2007, transferring jurisdiction of this matter to the Utah Court of Appeals. The Honorable Joseph C. Fratto of the Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, State of Utah, presided over the trial in this matter and entered Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law on April 27, 2007; Judgment entered on April 30, 2007; Memorandum Decision entered on August 21, 2007; and Amended Judgment entered on September 18, 2007.

ISSUES ON APPEAL, STANDARDS OF REVIEW and PRESERVATION

Issue 1: Did the trial court abuse its discretion in finding that the stock purchase agreement monies were not marital property?

Standard of Review: Discretionary ruling subject to the abuse-of-discretion standard. *See Mortensen v. Mortensen*, 760 P.2d 304, 305-6 (Utah 1988), and *Hall v. Hall*, 858 P.2d 1018, 1021 (Utah App. 1993) (internal citations omitted).

Preservation: This issue was preserved; at the trial, sufficient evidence was presented by the Petitioner/Appellant that the stock purchase agreement monies were marital property subject to equitable distribution. Petitioner/Appellant presented sufficient evidence showing that the Respondent/Appellee did not receive the stock or resulting sales proceeds from intestate succession or by bequest or devise by will, but that Appellee's mother was the only one who inherited anything from Appellee's father pursuant to the agreed upon alteration of Appellee's father's will. (See Trial Transcript [hereinafter "Trans."] 74:24-25; 75:1). Moreover, sufficient evidence was presented at trial that the stock purchase agreement monies were marital property because Appellant enhanced the value of the stock, in that Appellant played a key role in negotiations over the purchase price of the stock and thereafter managed investment of the sales proceeds. (Div. Trans. 783:17-24; 785:16-25; 786:10-19; 787:18-23). Finally, sufficient evidence was presented at trial that the stock purchase agreement monies were commingled into

the marital estate or partially gifted to the Appellant by the Appellee where the funds were deposited into joint accounts and used to buy and sell property for the family unit. (Div. Trans. 95:19-25; 96:1-16; 826:20-25; 827:1-14).

Issue 2: Did the trial court abuse its discretion by not granting Petitioner's 60(b) Motion to set aside certain portions of the Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law?

Standard of Review: Discretionary ruling subject to the abuse-of-discretion standard. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 938 (Utah 1994); Birch v. Birch, 771 P.2d 1114 (Utah App. 1989); and Larsen v. Collina, 684 P.2d 52 (Utah 1984).

Preservation: This issue was preserved; sufficient evidence was presented by the Petitioner/Appellant showing that it was an abuse of the trial court in denying the Petitioner's 60(b) Motion to set aside certain portions of the Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as such did not comport with the actual orders of the court. Appellant set forth thirteen (13) examples wherein the language of the pleadings either omitted particular findings addressed by the court and integral portions of the evidence presented at trial, and/or revised and added findings to the extent they were no longer consistent with the court's orders. (Addendum #3 & #4).

Issue 3: Did the trial court abuse its discretion by failing to order payment of the Petitioner's attorney's fees and costs?

Standard of Review: Discretionary ruling subject to the abuse-of-discretion standard. Davis v. Davis, 977 P.2d 539, 2003 UT App 282, ¶ 14; and Willey v. Willey, 951 P.2d 226, 230 (Utah 1997).

Preservation: This issue was preserved; at trial sufficient evidence was presented that Petitioner/Appellant should be awarded attorney's fees and costs. The Appellant demonstrated his financial need and showed that reasonableness of the fees should have only determined the amount of the award and not resulted in a denial in entirety; evidence was presented by the Appellant concerning his inability to pay attorney's fees and costs in relation to that of the Appellant, and counsel for Appellant testified as to her experience and efficiency, and the fee customarily charged in the locality for similar services. (Div. Trans. 1196:16-25; 1197:1-16; 1360:2-25; 1361:1-25; 1362:1). Finally, sufficient evidence was presented at trial showing that it was inappropriate for the trial court to make a finding and base its denial of fees based on the advancement of attorney's fees by Appellee's parents. (Div. Trans. 1208:3-25; 1209:8-13).

Issue 4: Did the trial court err in its ultimate conclusion that the Appellant had been unjustly enriched, placing burden on the defending party, and did the trial court have insufficient evidence to support its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law therein?

Standard of Review: Whether the unjust enrichment doctrine applies is a mixed question of application of law to facts, which is analyzed giving broad discretion to the trial court, based on the factors described in State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936-939 (Utah 1994); Jeffs v. Stubbs, 970 P.2d 1234, 1243-1245 (Utah 1998); and Desert Miriah, Inc. v. B&L Auto, Inc., 2000 UT 83, ¶ 10. When challenging the legal sufficiency of the evidence, a clearly erroneous standard of review applies, wherein a finding of fact is deemed "clearly erroneous" only if the Court concludes that the finding is against the

clear weight of the evidence. URCP 52(a) and (b); Reid v. Mutual of Omaha Ins. Co., 776 P.2d 896, 900-901 (Utah 1989); Reinbold v. Utah Fun Shares, 850 P.2d 487, 489 (Utah App. 1993); and 438 Main Street v. Easy Heat, 2004 UT 72, ¶ 51; Rule 52(e).

Which party has the burden of proof is a legal question reviewed for correctness using a “correction of error” standard of review. Orton v. Carter, 970 P.2d 1254, 1256 (Utah 1998); and A.K. & R. Whipple Plumbing & Heating v. Aspen Constr., 977 P.2d 518, 522 (Utah Ct. App. 1999).

Preservation: This issue was preserved by the Appellant’s timely filed Notice of Appeal, after denial of Appellant’s Rule 59(e) Motion to Alter or Amend the Judgment and supporting Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and by the Appellant’s Objection at time of trial (Div. Trans. 26:17-25).

Issue 5: Did the trial court err in awarding prejudgment interest?

Standard of Review: The award of prejudgment interest is a question of law, which is a correction of error standard of review. Dejavue Inc. v. U.S. Energy Corp., 1999 UT App 355, ¶ 9 (*citing* Andreason v. Aetna Cas. & Sur. 848 P.2d 171, 177 (Utah Ct. App. 1993)); *see also*, Klinger v. Kightly, 889 P.2d 1372, 1381 (Utah Ct. App. 1995).

Preservation: This issue was preserved by the Appellant’s timely Rule 59(e) Motion to Alter or Amend the Judgment and Supporting Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, which argued, in relevant part, that it was improper for the court to award prejudgment interest.

Issue 6: Did the trial court err in its failure to make any Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law regarding the Appellant’s defenses of statute of limitations and

collateral estoppel/issue preclusion?

Standard of Review: The adequacy of a trial court's findings of fact is reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard of review. *See Young v. Young*, 979 P.2d 338, 342 (Utah 1999); *Pennington v. Allstate Ins. Co.*, 973 P.2d 932, 937 (Utah 1998); *438 Main Street v. Easy Heat*, 2004 UT 72, ¶ 51; and Rule 52(e).

Preservation: This issue was preserved by the Appellant's timely Rule 59(e) Motion to Alter or Amend the Judgment and Supporting Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law filed on May 10, 2007.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES
(Text of Utah Code Provisions and Rules provided in separate Addendum)

Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3

Utah Code Annotated §78A-4-103 (recodified 2/07/08, previously §78-2a-3, §78-2a-3(2)(e), §78-2a-3(2)(j))

Utah Code Annotated §78B-2-305 (recodified 2/07/08, previously §78-12-26, §78-12-26(3))

Utah Rule of Appellate Procedure 24(a)(9)

Utah Rule of Appellate Procedure 34

Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 52(a)

Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 52(b)

Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 59(e)

Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 60(b)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case:

This case is before the Court of Appeals to determine whether the trial court abused its discretion in finding that the stock purchase agreement monies were not marital property, subject to equitable distribution; whether the trial court erred in its ultimate conclusion that the Appellant had been unjustly enriched by receiving certain monies therefrom; placing the burden of proof on the Appellant; whether the trial court abused its discretion by not granting Appellant's 60(b) Motion to set aside certain portions of the Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and Appellant's 59(e) Motion to Alter or Amend Findings and Conclusions, or which did not comport with the trial court's rulings and did not support its ultimate conclusion of law and Findings of Fact, including the court's award of prejudgment interest to the Appellee; whether the trial court erred in entering findings and conclusions of law that went well beyond the scope of an unjust enrichment claim and if so, whether the trial court erred in making factual findings regarding "fraud," "forgery," and "injust enrichment" to support a legal conclusion of unjust enrichment; and whether the trial court further erred in failing to make any finding or conclusion of law regarding the Appellant's affirmative defenses of statute of limitations and collateral estoppel/issue preclusion; and whether the trial court abused its discretion by not ordering payment to the Petitioner of his attorney's fees and costs.

During the early years of the parties' marriage, Appellant was employed with the Appellee's family business, Utah Bearing (from February, 1988), Cate Equipment

Appellee's other family business (from June, 1990) and Mesco (from April, 1994).

During their marriage, the parties enjoyed an extravagant and luxurious lifestyle; owned several properties, vehicles, and a boat; and held interests with several bank, financial institutions and stock accounts. The parties took several vacations and attended many sporting events, including tennis tournaments and camps, Utah Jazz games, and University of Utah sporting events.

The parties paid for all of their expenses accumulated from living such a jet-set lifestyle from the parties' mutual funds which included Appellant's salary and commissions, gifts or loans from his parents and money received by the parties during their marriage from the Stock Purchase Agreement. During the parties' marriage they would deposit, withdraw, and transfer monies between their accounts (separately and jointly held), which included Fidelity Investments, Zion's Bank, Bank One, First Security Bank, Wells Fargo Bank, and Jay Rice Investment accounts to support their family and marital lifestyle. Throughout their marriage the parties freely signed each other's name on checks from the various accounts and Mr. Kimball had trading privileges on the parties' stock accounts.

In 1993, Appellee's father and president of Utah Bearing and CATE Equipment died and left everything via a residuary clause in his will, including all of his stock interests that he possessed to the "James Franklin Pardoe Trust." Appellee was one of the beneficiaries to the Trust along with her mother and other siblings. In November 1993, the beneficiaries of the trust, including Appellee, altered the terms of the will and had all of the testamentary devises and bequests in the will go outright to Appellee's Mother,

Cherie Pardoe. Then, on November 1, 1993, Appellee received stock from an agreement entitled "Resolution of the Board of Directors of Utah Bearing" which in effect cancelled all previously issued shares of the corporation and issued new 1005 of Class A voting stock to Appellee.

The next year in 1994, Appellee received an initial offer from Dirk Pardoe, her brother and President of Utah Bearing, for purchase of her 1005 stock shares for an amount of \$1.7 million. After receiving such initial offer, Appellee discussed the matter with her husband, Jim Kimball (Appellant), who in connection with other advice sought from Appellant's friends and family members, convinced Appellee to reject this initial offer. In March of 1995, Appellee sold her 1005 shares of stock in Utah Bearing for \$2.5 million. The Stock Purchase Agreement as entered into called for a down payment of five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000.00) and issued Appellee a promissory note for two million dollars (\$2,000,000.00), with interest to accrue at nine percent (9%) per year on the unpaid balance, resulting in a monthly payment of \$25,335.15. On March 24, 1995, Appellee received the \$500,000 down payment from the stock purchase agreement. Appellee deposited the entire amount into the parties' joint money marketing account at Zions Bank. From March through June of 1995 the parties received the monthly payments of \$25,335.15 and placed such into the parties' accounts held with Zion's bank (joint account), Bank One (joint account), and Fidelity Investments (Appellee's account). At the same time that these monies were being deposited into the parties' accounts other monies from Appellant's employment and gifts from Appellant's parents were also being deposited into the same accounts.

On July 1, 1997, Utah Bearing elected to pay off the remaining principle balance owed to Appellee pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. The parties received \$1,691,963.99 for such remaining principle balance and deposited the full amount in the parties' joint Bank One account. The parties continued to use these funds for family expenses and necessities in connection with the monies they received from Appellant's employment and gifts from Appellant's parents, including purchase, as joint tenants, of two (2) parcels of land (Parcel #1 is a developed lot; and Parcel #2 is an undeveloped lot) at 2248 East Lauri Kay Drive, Salt Lake City, Utah. The parties remodeled the dwelling house situated on Parcel #1 and then sold Parcel #1 for \$460,000. At the time of trial the parties still owned, as joint tenants, Parcel #2, the undeveloped lot, and pursuant to the trial court's ruling, were granted equal interests in such property.

The trial court found that the stock purchase monies were not marital property subject to equitable division because: (1) they were never commingled into the marital estate; (2) they were an inheritance of the Appellee; (3) the Appellant did nothing to enhance, maintain, or protect the stock purchase monies; and (4) the Appellant had been unjustly enriched by certain funds he received therefrom, and that he had received such monies by "forgery. Furthermore, the trial court held that it was the Appellant's burden to show that he used such monies, from the altered or modified checks, for "family purposes."

B. Course of Proceedings:

The divorce action originated in the Third District Court upon the filing of the Complaint for Divorce by the Petitioner on March 18, 2002. The parties' marriage was

dissolved by a Bifurcated Decree of Divorce dated August 8, 2003, reserving for trial the custody and financial issues. The custody issues were resolved by stipulation approved by the Court and set forth in Order Re: Custody and Related Matters, dated March 10, 2005. During the pendency of the divorce trial proceedings, the Appellee's Amended Fidelity Complaint was pending for trial before the Honorable Judge Fratto. However, the divorce court made findings regarding the award and distribution of the parties' financial accounts and marital assets purchased from the Stock Purchase Agreement monies.

The Fidelity court did make finding that it was "injust" that the Appellant had received certain checks which he had modified or otherwise altered and that although the parties had throughout the course of their marriage, altered or signed one another's names on their respective checks (whether a joint or separate account), that the checks in question as raised by the Appellee, had been altered or modified by Appellant for his own benefit as he had failed to sufficiently show how such monies were used for "household or family" purposes.

C. Disposition of the Case:

Following a bench trial in December 2004, and April 2005, the divorce court issued its ruling, including the matters here at issue, in a May 24, 2005 hearing in which attorney for the Appellee was ordered to draft the Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. Such documents were drafted and submitted to the court without Appellant's approval as to form of the documents. Judge Fratto signed the Appellee's submitted documents on September 19, 2005. As a result,

Appellant filed Rule 60(b) Motion to Set Aside the Amended Decree of Divorce and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, including a copy of the transcript of the court's ruling, arguing that such orders did not accurately reflect Judge Fratto's Findings and Orders, which were issued orally on May 24, 2005. The court took the matter under advisement, and on February 21, 2006, Judge Fratto issued a Minute Entry denying Appellant's Motion. The Court found that although expressed with different terminology, the pleadings drafted by counsel for the Appellee correctly captured the Court's findings. Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal with the Third District Court on March 21, 2006 along with a request for preparation of relevant portions of the trial transcript; Appellant's Statement of Issues was subsequently filed with the above-entitled Court on April 3, 2006; Appellant's Docketing Statement was filed with the above-entitled Court on April 10, 2006; and Briefs were submitted on November 3, 2006, December 5, 2006, January 5, 2007, and February 13, 2007, respectively in the divorce appeal action. In the Fidelity action, Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal with the Third District Court on October 19, 2007, along with a request for preparation of relevant portions of the trial transcript on October 31, 2007; Appellant's Docketing Statement was subsequently filed with the above-entitled Court on November 6, 2007. Thereafter, Appellee filed a motion to consolidate the Fidelity appeal with the pending Divorce appeal action. The Appellate Court granted such motion on January 7, 2008.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Parties' Marriage

1. Appellant and Appellee were married on February 11, 1987 in Salt Lake City, Salt

Lake County, State of Utah. During their marriage, four (4) minor children were born to them. (FOF 1; Div. Trans. 3:21-22; 833:22-24). At the time of the parties' marriage, Appellant was employed at Jorgensen Appraisal. (Div. Trans. 717:9-12). Subsequently during the parties' marriage, Appellant was employed with Utah Bearing, Appellee's family business (from February, 1988), CATE Equipment, Appellee's other family business (from June, 1990) and MESCO (from April, 1994). (Div. Trans. 664:4-21; 777:13-15; 778:1-23).

2. During the parties' marriage, the parties enjoyed an extravagant and luxurious lifestyle. The parties traveled all over the world and the United States. (Div. Trans. 24:8-25; 25:1-25; 26:1-25; 27:1-28; 28:14-25; 29:8-9; 32:12-25; 33:16-20; 34:16-17; 35:3-8, 23-25; 36:1-3, 18-20). The parties would often take a vacation or trip every weekend. The parties owned several properties, a boat, various stocks, and had several bank and financial accounts. (Div. Trans. 40:15-25; 41:13-25; 42:4-13).
3. During the parties' marriage, the parties had season tickets to the Utah Jazz, the University of Utah Men's Basketball, the University of Utah Football and attended high-profile sporting events such as the U.S. Open, the NCAA basketball tournament, and the NBA finals. (Div. Trans. 26:16-18; 37:11-20; 38:9-25; 39:1-11, 16-20; 40:5-14; 757:25; 758:1-25). They also had various sports club memberships and their family attended elite tennis tournaments and tennis camps, wherein the parties associated with famous celebrities such as Andre Agassi, world-renown tennis professional, and Holly Parkinson, top 80 tennis player in the world. (Div. Trans. 21:8-23; 22:23-25; 23:1-11; 26:16-18; 29:10-24; 30:3-9; 33:21-25; 35:3-8; 759:6-25).

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