2006

James Lewis Kimball v. Merae Kimball : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

“against the clear weight of the evidence” and, thus, clearly erroneous. See *Doelle v. Bradley*, 784 P.2d 1176, 1178 (Utah 1989); see also *Grayson Roper Ltd. Partnership v. Finlinson*, 782 P.2d 467, 470 (Utah 1989).

Furthermore, James has a high standard to meet in marshaling the evidence. “In order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which *supports* the very findings the appellant resists.” *Interiors Contracting, Inc. v. Smith, Halander & Smith Assocs.*, 881 P.2d 929, 933 (Utah App. 1994) (emphasis in original, *quoting West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co.*, 818 P.2d 1311, 1313 (Utah App. 1991)). “Once appellants have established every pillar supporting their adversary’s position, they then ‘must ferret out fatal flaw in the evidence’ and show why those pillars fail to support the trial court’s findings.” *Oneida/SLIC v. Oneida Cold Storage and Warehouse, Inc.*, 872 P.2d 1051, 1053 (Utah App. 1994), *quoting West Valley*, 818 P.2d at 1314. An appellant fails to meet his burden of marshaling where he ignores evidence supportive of a jury’s verdict [or rulings of the trial court] and associated findings, and instead selectively marshals only evidence supportive of his position, since to do so is tantamount to improperly rearguing the merits of his case before the appellate court. *Interiors Contracting, supra* and *Oneida, supra*. Therefore, when an appellant fails to adequately marshal the evidence for the reviewing appellate court, that court should “refuse to consider the merits of challenges to the findings and accept the findings as valid.” *Mountain States Broadcasting v. Neale*, 783 P.2d 551, 553 (Utah App. 1989)

James' appeal questions whether the trial court abused its discretion on several issues. Ergo, James must successfully challenge the factual findings upon which the trial court's decision depended.

When parties appeal a court's fact-sensitive use of its discretionary powers, they "must successfully challenge the factual findings upon which the trial court's decision... depended." *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, n. 14 100 P.3d 1177. This requires that parties marshal the evidence. As we have previously explained, parties who ask this court to consider fact-sensitive questions- including those questions reviewed under an abuse of discretion standard- have a duty to marshal all the evidence that formed the basis for the trial court's ruling. *United Park City Mines Co. v. Stichting Mayflower Mountain Fonds*, 2005 UT 35, 140 P.3d 1200, 1208-09.

Even where the defendants purport to challenge only the legal ruling, as here, if a determination of the correctness of a court's application of a legal standard is extremely fact-sensitive, the defendants also have a duty to marshal the evidence. *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, ¶ 20, 100 P. 3d 1177. Where an appellant fails to so marshal the evidence, we need not consider the challenge to the sufficiency of the evidence. See *Tanner v. Carter*, 2001 UT 18 ¶17, 20 P.2d 332. *Cache County v. Beus*, 128 P.3d 63 (Utah App. 2005).

Therefore, if a party does not meet their marshaling requirement, then the appellate court may presume that the findings were valid and affirm those findings. Then, once the appellate court affirms the findings of fact, then they also may affirm the trial court's conclusion that arose from those facts.

As is apparent from a comparison between Merae's "Statement of Facts" section above and the selective "Statement of Facts" adduced by James in his brief, a number of important pieces of evidence presented to the trial court and supportive of the trial court's findings were not

cited by James in his brief. Instead of presenting such supportive evidence and attempting to demonstrate its insufficiency, James presented this appellate court with the selective version of the facts that James thinks the trial court should have accepted at the trial. In other words, James selected facts favorable to his theory of the consolidated cases, while wholly ignoring those facts supportive of the findings of the trial court. Rather than properly marshaling the evidence as required, James selectively presented facts favorable to his argument on appeal in a misplaced and inappropriate effort to reargue the merits of his case before this appellate court. Because James has failed in his basic threshold duty on appeal to properly marshal the evidence, the trial court's findings on both cases consolidated on appeal must stand.

Additionally, James not only failed to cite certain material facts supportive of the findings of the trial court, he goes a step further to actually misrepresent or skew the nature of certain facts adduced in his brief. In analyzing James' arguments as contained in his brief, it should be noted that a number of them are built on assumptions that he reached in his arguments before the trial court, but which the trial court did not accept and in fact, are contradicted by testimony.

Some examples are:

1. In James' Fact No. 4, the claim is made that during their marriage, the parties enjoyed and extravagant and luxurious lifestyle, and traveled all over the World and U.S. This statement is misleading because it omits the following material facts:

- A. Prior to March of 1995, when Merae sold her 1005 Shares, the parties had no savings, no boat, drove high-mileage used cars, the checks to pay their monthly

house payment bounced on at least two occasions, and their checking account at Bank One was frequently overdrawn and checks returned, see Tr-1295 L 24-25, Tr 1296 L 1-25.

B. After Merae sold her 1005 Shares, the parties drove new automobiles, purchased a 26 foot Sea Ray boat, became members of the University of Utah Crimson Club, enjoying its associated benefits, and had savings accounts, treasury bills, the Fidelity Account, and enjoyed, with their four children, cruises, vacations, and sporting events wherever they were played, see Tr-1297-8.

2. It is represented at James' Fact No. 4, that the parties' "jet-set" lifestyle was funded, in part, by James' salary and commissions. This statement is untrue because James did not earn enough money to contribute to the parties' lifestyle, see Tr 1298 L 20-25.

A. James earned \$2,391 in 1998, see Ex P1346.

B. James earned -\$61 in 1999, see Ex P1350.

C. James earned \$600 in 2000, see Ex P1354.

D. James earned \$1,748 in 2001, see Ex P1358.

3. One other area where James misrepresents the facts by omitting to state material facts related to the issue is set forth at Point II on page 36 of his Brief. James states that " he filed a Rule 60 (b) motion.... because the findings of fact drafted by Merae's counsel, did not accurately reflect the trial court's rulings". This statement fails to state facts material to the issue, which are:

A. At the conclusion of the ruling hearing, the trial court directed Merae's counsel to draft the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and an amended decree of divorce* reflecting the court's rulings.

B. The papers were prepared by Merae's counsel and hand-delivered to James' counsel on September 6th, 2005.

C. James' counsel filed no timely objections to the papers under Rule 7 (f)(2) of the U R Civ P, and on September 19th, 2005, the trial court signed the papers, on September 20th, the clerk entered them, R 3726, and on September 21st, the amended decree of divorce was entered in the registry of judgments, R 3746.

D. On November 10th, 2005, James filed objections to the papers, see R 3882.

E. The only post-trial motion filed by James was the Rule 60 (b) motion submitted on November 10th, 2005, claiming that the papers filed by Merae's counsel did not accurately reflect the trial court's rulings, see R 3901.

F. Merae filed a timely response to James' motion asserting that James waived his right to object to the papers filed by Merae's counsel because he did not file timely objections as allowed by Rule 7 (f)(2) of the U R Civ P, see R 3923, and that a Rule 60 (b) motion was an inappropriate means of objecting to the papers, see R 3923.

* An amended decree was appropriate because a bifurcated decree of divorce was signed on July 7th, 2003, see R 1171.

G. The trial court denied James' Rule 60 (b) motion on February 21st, 2006, stating, in part, that the papers correctly capture the court's findings, see R 4063.

4. James' Brief at page 34 states that the trial court made no findings regarding the \$460,000 received from the sale of the Lori Kay Home. This statement is untrue and again constitutes improper marshaling.

At the ruling hearing, the trial court found that the \$460,000 (\$406,142.55 net) was Merae's sole and separate property and gave the following reasons for that finding, see Ruling Hearing P 4 and 5.

A. The funds used to purchase and remodel the Lori Kay Home were Merae's.

B. When the Lori Kay Home was sold, the funds went back to Merae and every action taken thereafter was that the funds were hers.

C. James made no objection that the funds be placed back into Merae's account.

D. James made no claim on the funds.

E. It appears that James assented to the fact that these were Merae's funds that had purchased and remodeled the Lori Kay Home and that on sale, Merae was entitled to the proceeds.

The Court's rulings relative to the \$460,000 are set forth in the following findings, see R 3731 and 3732.

40. During September of 1997, the parties purchased a home on Lori Kay Drive, Holladay, Utah, the “Lori Kay Home” herein, and a vacant lot hereinafter referred to as the “Odd Piece of the Lori Kay Property”, for \$379,964.67.

41. The entire purchase price was paid by the Respondent from funds in the Fidelity Account.

42. The Lori Kay Home was remodeled and the entire cost of remodeling was paid by the Respondent from funds in the Fidelity Account.

43. The Lori Kay Home was sold in October of 1998 for \$406,142.55 after real estate commissions and closing costs were paid.

44. The Odd Piece of the Lori Kay Property was not sold and, at the time of trial, was held jointly by the parties.

45. The net proceeds of the sale of the Lori Kay Home were deposited in the Fidelity Account and every action taken thereafter shows that the funds were the Respondent’s sole and separate property.

46. Petitioner made no objection that the funds received from the sale of the Lori Kay Home be placed back into the Fidelity Account nor did he make a claim on the said funds, in fact, he assented that it was the Respondent’s funds that had purchased and remodeled the Lori Kay Home and that, when the Lori Kay Home was sold, Respondent was entitled to the proceeds.

47. It is reasonable that the funds received from the sale of the Lori Kay Home, \$406,142.55, be the Respondent's sole and separate property.

5. Another example of misleading and inadequate marshaling is the representation in James' Fact No. 17, that monthly payments of \$25,335.15 received by Merae, from the sale of her 1005 Shares, were deposited in the parties' joint bank accounts. This is a mis-statement of the evidence. The true testimony and other evidence are:

- A. The Fidelity Account statements show that the account was opened on February 26th, 1996, see Ex P 2040-2047.
- B. The statements show that Merae's Fidelity Account was an individual account, not a joint account with James, see Ex P 2048-2059.
- C. The Fidelity Account was opened to hold monies received by Merae from the sale of her 1005 Shares, Tr 890 L 10-20
- D. In June of 1995, Merae purchased \$224,000 worth of treasury bills, in her name only, from money she received from the sale of her 1005 Shares, see Ex P 1977-1980.
- E. When the treasury bills matured, they were cashed by Merae and the cash deposited by her in the Fidelity Account, see Tr 818 L 12-20 and Tr 819 L 14-22.
- F. Under the Stock Purchase Agreement, Ex P 2453 at paragraph 6, Merae received \$25,335.15 each month.

G. James testified that Merae received her monthly stock purchase payment agreement near the latter part of the month. See Tr 853 L 14-16.

H. Merae's June 1996 payment was deposited in the parties' Bank One Account and a check for \$23,000 was written to the Fidelity Account and \$2,335.15 was left in the Bank One Account to pay bills, see Ex P 1627, Tr 851 L 23-25 and Tr 852 L 1-7.

I. Merae's November 1996 payment was deposited in the parties' Bank One Account and a check for \$21,000 was written to the Fidelity Account and \$4,335.15 was left in the Bank One Account to pay bills, see Ex P 1627, and Tr 853 L 8.

J. Merae's May 1996 payment of \$25,335.15 was deposited in the parties' Bank One Account and a check for \$22,000 was written to the Fidelity Account, see Ex P 1627 and Tr 853 L 10.

K. During January of 2002, James told Merae that he was earning good money and was the top salesman at MESCO, earning enough to pay family necessities and bills, see Tr 1514 L 16-17 and Tr 1515 L 13-24.

L. Merae's intent was to use the Fidelity Account money for the education of the parties' four children and to provide cars, boats, trips, and recreation for the family, see Tr 902 L 11 and Tr 1519 L 1-4.

M. Merae payed off the mortgage on the parties' home at Village Point Way from the Fidelity Account, see Tr 1284 L 11-18.

N. Merae paid \$34,000 for a 26 foot Sea Ray boat from her Fidelity Account, see the 6/4/99 entry on Ex R 10.

O. When the boat was demolished in an accident, the insurance company paid \$30,000 and that sum went into the Fidelity Account, see the 5/8/01 entry on Ex R 11.

P. James told Merae that the purchase and remodel of the Lori Kay Home would be a very profitable investment, see Tr 1534 L 12-18, Tr 1545 L 12-19, and Tr 1548 L 10-13.

Q. Merae purchased the Lori Kay Home by issuing a \$379,964.67 check on her Fidelity Account, see the 9/15/97 entry on Ex R 16.

R. All funds utilized to remodel the Lori Kay Home came from the Fidelity Account, see Ex R 16 checks to Class One Construction.

S. When the Lori Kay Home was sold in October of 1998 for \$460,000, the net proceeds of \$406,142.55 were deposited in the Fidelity Account, see 10/20/98 entry on Ex R 17.

T. James made no claim to any of the proceeds from the sale of the Lori Kay Home, see Tr 704 L 1-3.

U. Merae lost approximately \$51,000 by purchasing, remodeling, and selling the Lori Kay Home, see Ex R 16.

V. The Odd Piece of Lori Kay Property has questionable value because it is landlocked, cannot be re-zoned for commercial use, and may not be a legal building lot, see Tr 558 L 19-25 and Tr 559 L 1-9.

W. Merae paid \$28,570.94 for a 1997 Chevrolet Suburban from the Fidelity Account, see 10/12/99 entry on Ex R 9.

X. From the funds she received from the sale of her 1005 Shares, Merae deposited \$2,507,873.99 in the Fidelity Account, see Ex R 15.

Y. At the time of the parties' separation, February of 2002, Merae had a balance of approximately \$1,055,000 in her Fidelity Account, see Ex P 2049.

6. Set forth in James' Brief at page 14, paragraph 6, is the statement that "during their marriage, both parties freely signed each others names on checks from various accounts....both had trading privileges on the parties' stock accounts." As support for these factual statements are a Sandy Police Officer report, Ex P 2123; a \$252 check written on April 22nd, 1994, Ex P 1625; the testimony of Officer Brown at Tr 464 L 16-25 and Tr 465 L 722 and the testimony of James at Tr 828 L 9-25.

Again, James is guilty of misleading marshaling and misrepresenting the evidence. Officer Brown testified that Merae communicated to him that over \$100,000 was missing from her Fidelity Account. When Officer Brown discussed the matter with Greg Bown, Assistant

District Attorney, Officer Brown stated that in the his family it was a common practice for a husband and wife to sign each other's signatures, deposit checks. James testified that on April 22nd, 1994, a \$252 check was made out and the signature "looks like Merae's", see Tr 828 L 9-25. The Sandy City Police Report, Ex P 2123 at Page 4 states that "the DA's office would not file in this case, because it was too problematic. He indicated that it was common practice for husbands and wives to sign each other's names and he believed the funds to be common property within the marriage.... plus the account was in both parties names."

No reference is made in the exhibits or testimony related to the parties' stock trading privileges.

The above examples of failed, incomplete, skewed, and/or misleading marshaling are by no means exhaustive. The number and magnitude of such examples demonstrate that such instances of failure on the part of James are neither incidental, inadvertent, nor harmless. Rather, they are legion, they are material, and they are systematic. In short, they call into serious question all of James' factual representations, both what has been included (including whether any given factual representation is accurate or placed in proper context) and what has not been included.

II. WHEN THE APPELLANT DOES NOT MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE, SHOULD THE APPELLEE DO SO?

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